gapsa

Minutes of the Executive Board M eeting on November 25, 2008

The thirteenth regularly scheduled meeting of the GAPSA Executive Board was convened on
November 25, 2008 at 6:37 pm on the campus of the University of the Sciences in
Philadelphia

Roll Call

Present were: Andrew Remekamp, Sardn Smith, Alejandro Hagan, Nikki Thorpe, and Christa
Heyward.

Also presnt were: Whelton Miller, Kenny Nguyen, SaraAnsaloni, Christopher Cadello, Jay
Greenberg, and Jackie Yim.

Quorum was not obtained
Introductions

University of the Sciences Graduate Student Council Presdent Whelton Miller welcomed
everyone and began the introductions. Kenny Nguyen is one of the USP Serators and Jay
Greenberg is the part-time studentsOrepresentative at USP. Mr. Miller stated that many of
USPOsExecutive Board members were absent due to the upcoming holiday. GAPSA Vice
Chair for Studert Life Nikki Thorpe asked how many people are on USPOsExecutive board.
Mr. Miller statedthat thirteen people make up USPG Executive Board.

Mr. Miller stated that he, GAPSA Chair Andrew Remekamp and DrexelOGraduate Student
Association Presdent Sala Ansaloni had previousy met at Cosi to discussissuesinformally.

Ms. Ansaloni askedfor more introductions.

Mr. Miller stated that he is in the theoretical chemistry department and that Mr. Nguyen
works in the same group. Ms. Ansaloni asked what a senatorOsduties entail. Mr. Miller
stated that a USP Serator is tiedin with the undergraduate student government, attends these
meetings and reports badk to the USP Executive Board concerning thess meetings. Mr.
Greenberg stated that he is studying in the bioinformatics program.

GAPSA First Vice Chair Alejandro Hagan stated that he is pursuing both an MSW and an
MBA. Mr. Rennekamp stated that he is pursuing a PhD in the cell molecuar biology
program. Mr. Rennekamp stated that PennOSGAPSA has twelve members on its Executive
Board which represnts all graduate and professional students. Mr. Rennekamp explained
that Penn has twelve different graduate and professional students and a total of 47
representatives on GAPSAOsGeneral Assembly. Ms. Thorpe stated that she is pursuing a
MagerOsn City Planning.

DrexelOsGraduate Student Assembly Vice Presdent Christopher Cagello stated that he is
pursuing a PhD in chemistry. Ms. Cagello explained that Drexel hasjust esabished social
and alumni committeesand a soccer league. Drexel hasa senate and daughter organizations
which it supports by way of funding. DrexelOsadministration gives money to the GSA and
this money is given to the organizations. The Drexel GSA Executive Board contains four
people. Mr. Miller aked if the other committees are formed from the general population.



gapsa

Ms. Ansaloni stated that the GSA solicited students for volunteers and these students were
placed on committees Ms. Ansaloni stated that senate meeting representatives come from
each graduate student organization. The social and alumni committees each have two
representatives for initiatives happening on Drexel@ campus. There is also an intercultural
committee and a green initiative to help make DrexelOscampus more sustainable. Drexel
GSA Secretary Jackie Yim stated that she is pursuing a PhD in bioengineering.

GAPSA Vice Chair for Operations Samh Smith stated that she is pursuing a DMD. GAPSA
Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward stated that she is pursuing a PhD in the cell
molecular biology program. Ms. Ansaloni stated that she is pursuing a PhD in molecuar
biology.

Beginning of the QUniversity City Graduate CoalitionO
Social Event

Ms. Ansaloni stated that the first event that Penn, Drexel and USP host should be some sort
of social mixer that is eay to organize so that many people will attend and mingle between
the three universities Mr. Rennekamp stated that a community service event would be
bereficial not only for the three schools but also for the local community. Mr. Rennekamp
stated that it would be better to begin with something that will be eay to continue in the
future. Mr. Miller aked when this first event should take place. Ms. Ansaloni stated that the
event should be schediled as soon as possible, but after the Winter Holidays is more
reasonable.

Jorge Cham PhD Cartoon Event

Ms. Ansaloni mentioned that Jorge Cham, cartoonist from phdcomics.com, is traveling to
Philly to speak on February 24™ at Drexel and February 25™ at Penn. Ms. Ansaloni invited
students from Penn and USP to attend the Drexel event. Ms. Ansaloni suggested having
pizza for lunch during a book signing by Mr. Cham. In addition, a happy hour for Penn,
Drexel and USP students could be held on the night of the 24™. Ms. Ansaloni stated that USP
could look into inviting Mr. Cham to its own campus, aswel. Mr. Miller stated he would
follow up on this as the USP GSC@® funding is in process. Ms. Ansaloni stated that it is
expensive to bring Mr. Cham to campus. Mr. Miller stated that by February, USP funding
should be set. Mr. Cadello stated nonetheless, everyone iswelcome to Drexel O=vent on the
24" Mr. Miller stated that his Executive Board will plan an event and thanked Mr. Cagello
for the invitation. Mr. Rennekamp askedwhere the building for the Penn event on the 25™
islocated Ms. Ansaloni stated she wasunsure of this. Ms. Heyward stated that the location
hasnot been confirmed Ms. Ansaloni stated that she had been in contact with GAPSA Vice
Chair for Equity and Access Esther Agbgje concerning the happy hour location. Mr. Cagello
akedwhat day of the week this happy hour would be held. Ms. Ansaloni stated that it would
be held on a Tuedlay night. Ms. Ansaloni stated that New Deck Tavern was not cooperative
in scheduling an event that night. Mr. Cagello stated that he knows the owner of New Deck
and will speak with him concerning this. Ms. Heywardstated that Quizzo is held at New Deck
on Wedneday nights. Ms. Ansaloni stated that New Dedk is not willing to cancel Quizzo or
give any special deak for an event.

Possible Involvement of OCCampus PhillyO

Mr. Miller stated that he spoke with the Graduate Representative of Campus Philly and she
stated that she would be willing to work with the schools on organizing events. Mr. Miller



gapsa

stated that he attempted to email this contact person this year but hasnot heard badk from
her. Ms. Heyward stated that this was also an ideathat came up in a GAPSA Executive Board
meeting. Ms. Heyward stated that Campus Philly has a budget to plan thes typesof events.
Mr. Miller aked if Ms. Heyward had spoken to Campus Philly recently. Ms. Heyward stated
that she had not. Ms. Ansaloni akedwhat Campus Philly is. Mr. Hagan stated that a social
collaboration between Penn, Drexel and USPisintuitive.

Other Collaborations & Information Exchange

Mr. Hagan asked if this collaboration can form anything beyond the social events. Mr.
Miller suggested extending from the social events, giving proceeds from an event to a
charity. Mr. Hagan stated that at Penn, there are no part-time student representatives or
even a special committee devoted to this. Mr. Hagan aked what challenges thes students
from other universitiesface and if Penn could speak with them.

Academic Workshops or Conferences

Ms. Ansaloni suggested for the collaboration holding social events, mixers with alumni and
workshops on finding ajob after graduation. Ms. Ansaloni stated that broader interegs events
will be more succesful. Ms. Ansaloni stated that Penn is large, Drexel has contacts in the
industries and USP has contacts in the pharmaceutical companies With these contacts, a
workshop could be held that could berefit everyone academically and socially. Mr. Miller
suggested holding a poster session where people from the different industriescould attend and
learn about studentsOwork. Mr. Miller stated that he and Mr. Nguyen collaborate with Penn
and a lot could come from this collaboration. Ms. Ansaloni stated that the GSA started a
poster session recently. Ms. Ansaloni suggested that the three schools collaborate on this,
coming up with a theme for the posters and holding a poster competition with prizes and
people from the industry sitting on the judging committee. Ms. Ansaloni suggested inviting
graduate students and professors from each university to sit on this committee. Ms. Ansaloni
aked if this would be usefu to Penn studerts. Mr. Rennekamp stated that it is difficult for
Penn to hold such an event since the typesof students on PennOscampus are so diverse. |t
would be difficult for GAPSA to organize such an academic event that caters to all graduate
and professional students. Mr. Rennekamp stated that at Penn there are student
governments at each individual graduate school. Mr. Rennekamp stated that these schoal
student governments should be contactedfor an academic event such asa poster sesion. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that if Drexel or USP are intereded in a certain topic, then GAPSA can
give the contact information for thes people. Ms. Heyward stated that there are certain
topicswhere such an event would be appropriate. Ms. Heyward stated that Wharton held an
energy conference and many students are interesedin the topic of energy production asit is
a broad topic. Ms. Heyward suggested thinking of topics that are les academic and more
informative. Mr. Miller stated that if Penn, Drexel and USP are intereged in a topic, that
they should work together on it. Ms. Heyward stated that GAPSA can act asa conduit for
PennOssubgroups and provide an intermedary.

Community Service Events

Mr. Rennekamp suggested jointly holding a community service event. Mr. Rennekamp
stated that GAPSA sent volunteers for tree planting with UC Green and will be planning
another similar event in the spring. Mr. Rennekamp stated that he was unsure of the spring
date but stated that Drexel and USP could collaborate on this or another community service
event. Mr. Rennekamp stated that for GAPSA succesful community service events are
those that are previously planned and GAPSA helps send volunteers to thes events. Mr.



gapsa

Miller aked if GAPSA had a contact list for these typesof events. Mr. Rennekamp stated
that GAPSA Vice Chair Christina Arlt has been orgarizing thes events but she could not
attend tonightOsmeeting. Ms. Arlt has also planned pag events such as a pie taging
berefiting MANNA and terminally ill patients. Mr. Rennekamp stated that community
service events are good opportunities for students to interact with local organizations and
students from other schools. Ms. Heyward stated that a non-perishalde food drive could be
held before the Christmas holiday as this would be a great collaborative opportunity. Ms.
Ansaloni stated that the GSA is also holding an event like this at Drexel. Mr. Rennekamp
noted this type of event does not allow much student interaction. Ms. Heyward suggested
holding an event where students bring a non-perishale item to get into the event. Mr.
Cadello stated that working with local organizations to hold a large event would entice these
organizations to seek out the three universities for help with future events. Mr. Cagello
noted that combining three campuseswould be enough to create a substantial initiative and
make an impact as far asworking with an organization. This would also make University
City stand out and more students would become involved. If the word is put out, then many
organi zations would want the schools to help.

Mr. Miller statedthat Campus Philly could help with advertising.

Ms. Ansaloni suggested holding adinner event. Ms. Heyward stated that a large enough space
would be required for this type of event. Ms. Heyward suggested only charging attendeesif
they did not bring a canned food and having drink specials for all. Ms. Heyward suggested
that no school would pay money for this event asit would only promote bringing canned
goods. Ms. Heyward suggested finding a venue with reasonable prices Mr. Miller stated that
this type of event would be good for the venue asit would be donating time and space for a
charitabe cause. Ms. Ansaloni stated that there is little time left in the year to plan this
large scale event if it isto be held prior to Christmas Ms. Ansaloni statedthat the food drive
itself is not difficult to organize. Mr. Miller suggeged breaking up this event into parts
beginning with contacting Campus Philly. Ms. Ansaloni asked what date would be
appropriate for this event asthere must be plenty of notice for the students.

Mr. Cadello stated that even if these community service events are not plannedin time for
Christmas they would still be good for helping local schools and cleaning up local
neighborhoods. Ms. Heyward stated that there is a community center on Powelton close to
the university campuses. Mr. Cadello stated that working with the local schools community
center would allow university students to come together for a common cause of helping the
community with wide ranging effects. Mr. Cagello stated that there should be some type of
structure in place in helping these local organizations. Mr. Cadello noted that the university
students do not necessarily need to derive this structure on their own as there are many
already in place. Ms. Heyward stated that she mentored children in schools and that
IPRAXIS is an organization that holds a spring science fair for these students. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that in the pag this had not been succesful. Ms. Heyward stated that she
heard it is more succesful presently and noted that GAPSA helped out with this event two
years ago. Ms. Heyward explained that a science fair is held within the city school district
and students compete among each other. Ms. Heyward noted that graduate students are
frequently asked to mentor students for their science projeds. Ms. Heyward noted that the
universities could collaborate on this project. Mr. Cagello stated that the Franklin Institute
works with Philadelphia public schools and that organizations such as this need volunteers
that the universitiescould provide. Mr. Cadello stated that if all of the volunteers could be
from University City then this would be great not only for the organization but also for
public relations. Ms. Heyward noted that some graduate students may have trouble
committing to a reqular schedule. Ms. Ansaloni noted that one collaborative event may be



gapsa

better. Mr. Cagello stated that graduate student volunteers would only be needed for one
event, a University City handled event.

Ms. Ansaloni stated that this needs to be thought in practical terms, asin where, when, how
much. Mr. Miller statedthat it could be held in the spring, possibly later. Mr. Cagello stated
that the Drexel Sccial Committee could get together at a smaller level and bring this issue to
the larger boards as the overseeing boards do not need to plan an event such asthis. Ms.
Ansaloni stressed that importance of choosing a proper date. Ms. Ansaloni noted that there
is the PhD comics event in Felruary and GAPSA Vice Chair for Equity and Access Esther
Agbge could look into venues for happy hours for the three universities Ms. Ansaloni
suggested holding an event before mid January such as the previously discussed food drive
party where attendeeseither bring a canned good or money that could be donated to a local
charity. Mr. Miller stated that the food drive ideais a good one and that the science fair
volunteering and charitable monetary donations could be done in the immedate future. Mr.
Miller notedthat a party could be held in the later future asthe food drive is the most needed.
It would be difficult to hold so many events in one month. Mr. Miller suggested spacing out
collaborative events. Ms. Ansaloni noted that some type of event should be organized as
soon as possible. Mr. Miller stated that this would be more effective if planned now. Mr.
Miller stated that he and his executive board are willing to help in any manner in order to
bre&k up the regponsibilities Mr. Miller suggesting holding an event before the Eader
holiday. Ms. Heyward noted that not everyone celebrates Eager. Ms. Thorpe stated that a
food drive does not have to be associated with a holiday. Ms. Heyward noted that during
Passover, certain typesof food cannot be present in a house. Ms. Heyward suggested fi nding
a Philacelphia food bank. Mr. Cadello noted that during the Christmas holidays many
people donate. Mr. Miller stated that whatever is decided, he is willing to help out. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that this event may be difficult to squeez in and more than one meeting
between the universitiesshould be scheduled if the event should be succesful.

University-wide Events

Ms. Ansaloni asked if any events were planned at each schoolOscentral level. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that GAPSA has organized an ice skating event on Sunday, December 7"
at the rink on 30" and Walnut. Ms. Ansaloni asked who may attend this event. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that for Penn students the event would cost $4 after GAPSA subsidizesthe
cost. Ms. Heyward stated the cost of admission for non-Penn students would be $8. Mr.
Rennekamp noted that this cost includes everything. Mr. Rennekamp stated that this
GAPSA event could be opened up to Drexel and USP students but the subsidized cost could
not be given to these students. Ms. Ansaloni asked is this event could be advertised to the
Drexel and USP students. Mr. Rennekamp stated that anyone can attend and there will be
many graduate students attending. Ms. Heyward asked if GAPSA had reserved the entire rink
for this event. Mr. Rennekamp stated that the rink could be resrved if many students are
interesed Mr. Cadello aked if each school has another meeting scheduled before the
December winter break. Mr. Miller stated that USP will have its next meeting next week or
the week after.

Development of a Game Plan

Mr. Cagello stated that good ideas have been discussed so far at this meeting and these should
be discussed with each schoolsCboards. Mr. Cagello suggested holding alarge social event for
university students to work together and get to know ead other for future events. Mr.
Cadello suggested planning to hold this event in January. Mr. Cagello stated that this would



gapsa

be a chance to meet with each school government, decide on ideas and collaboratively meet
again to mutually agree on events and which committeesshould plan them.

Ms. Ansaloni stated that three events should be chosen based on preference and practicality.
Ms. Ansaloni stated that what to look for, what to invegigate and what expenses must be
deak with. Ms. Ansaloni stated that everyone could leave tonightOsmeeting with a starting
point. Mr. Miller stated that a social event could be held at the end of January or beginning
of Felruary and a canned goods event could be held in the spring. This would be enough time
to plan a large event for the end of January. Ms. Heyward stated that Mr. Cagello could
speak with the Franklin Institute concerning volunteering and that Mr. Miller could spe&
with Campus Philly to help with event advertising. Ms. Ansaloni asked for three events to be
planned Ms. Ansaloni stated there could be the end of January social event and that
everyone should think of a fundraiser to organize this. Ms. Ansaloni suggested the idea of
donating money to alocal organization. Mr. Cagello aked how many students would attend
a fundraiser party. Ms. Ansaloni stated that she attended such an event at Patou and despite
the drinks not being free, the event was packed. This event was held by an international
student organization. Mr. Miller aked if USPOssocial chair emailed Ms. Ansaloni, who
repliedthat she hadnot receivedan email but that she hasthe contact information.

Mr. Rennekamp stated that goals of each event should be prioritized as both events could be
potentially held. Mr. Rennekamp stated holding two events at once would be difficult asit
would be the first collaborative event. Ms. Ansaloni stated that the event list contains the
social event, the Franklin Institute volunteering and the canned food drive. Mr. Cadello
stated that by volunteering through the Franklin Institute, other collegesin the universities
would needto be represented not just the science graduate students.

Soccer Tour nament

Ms. Heyward suggested organizing a soccer tournament since many studernts might want to
cosponsor this type of event. Ms. Ansaloni agreed that this event would be appropriate. Ms.
Heyward suggested requiring a small entry fee, getting a nice prize for the winner, and having
a social event following the tournament. Mr. Cagello stated that this would be an event
student would pay to attend. Mr. Miller akedwhen this event would be held. Mr. Cagdello
stated it should be held in the spring. Ms. Heyward stated that this would be ealy enough
before students leave for the summer but late enough in the year so it would not be chilly
outside. Ms. Ansaloni suggested holding the event in mid-April. Mr. Cagello statedthat the
Drexel soccer league is quite large. When Drexel holds a soccer tournament, there are usually
18 games. Ms. Ansaloni stated that the event could be organizedinto a weekend event with
preliminary games held during the week. Ms. Ansaloni noted that there are nice fields along
Powelton. Afterwards, a picnic event for the universities could be organized Mr.
Rennekamp stated that Drexel could take the lead on organizing this event, Penn could
organize the community service event, and USP could organize the social event.

Division of Labor

Mr. Rennekamp asked if this would be am appropriate way to split up the events. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that it is important for the three schools to communicate in terms of
when the events would be held and who would be in charge of publicity. Mr. Cagello stated
that when the social event is being organizedDrexel students could help with this.

Ms. Ansaloni summarized, stating that there should be a social event at the end of January.
The food drive and the Franklin Institute events are possible community service events. Ms.



gapsa

Ansaloni aked if these community service events should be kept separate or if both should be
organized Drexel could organize the soccer tournament. Mr. Rennekamp noted that Ms.
Arlt was not presnt for this meeting but that Penn could find people to help out with
specific community service events. Mr. Miller stated that the three schools can work
together with Penn in planning the Franklin Institute event. Mr. Rennekamp noted that
GAPSA is planning a tree planting event, which would take place in the spring. Mr.
Rennekamp stated that the lag tree planting event wasin Malcolm X park and the next
event would be in University City. Ms. Ansaloni akedfor thisinformation to be sent to her
asDrexel would like to be involvedin becoming greener. Mr. Rennekamp stated that school
administrators like to see their studentsinvolvedin green projects.

Landlord Survey & Graduate Student Housing

Ms. Ansaloni mentioned the Landlord and Housing Survey. Mr. Rennekamp stated that so
far 400 people have completed the Landlord Survey. Ms. Thorpe stated that 495 people had
completed this asof lag Friday. Ms. Thorpe noted that the more submissions received, the
more information can be provided. Ms. Thorpe stated that in January or February the
reports will be releagd Mr. Rennekamp stated the more data received ealier on, the fager
the data can be compiled This survey will give landlords ratings in the system. Thiswill not
only include University City but also some downtown apartment buildings. Ms. Ansaloni
stated that this data will be agood resource. Ms. Ansaloni suggestedincluding price rangesin
the survey. Mr. Rennekamp statedthat thisinformation is availade but is not included in the
aurvey. The Office of Off Campus Services at Penn keeps track of rent pricing. Mr.
Rennekamp asked if this information is available online. Ms. Heyward noted that people
paying more in rent may be inherently happier. Ms. Ansaloni mentioned price qudity. Ms.
Ansaloni stated that an email about the Landlord Survey was sent to all Drexel students. Mr.
Rennekamp thanked Ms. Ansaloni. Mr. Rennekamp stated that this survey will also be sent
to Penn undergraduate students and even university employees may want to submit
information. Ms. Heyward asked if the other universities provide on campus housing for
graduate students. Ms. Ansaloni stated that Drexel doesnot. Ms. Ansaloni stated that she
spoke with DrexelOsExecutive Vice Preddent and he stated that the GSA should look into
getting landlords to subsidize space for graduate students. Ms. Heyward askedwhich landlords
would be willing to do this. Mr. Hagan stated that landlords adjust their ratesto the amount
graduate students are expected to pay. Mr. Hagan noted that landlords have no incentive to
offer lower rates to students. Ms. Heyward suggeded that the landlords receive a tax
deduction. Ms. Ansaloni statedif more structureswere in place, this could be considered. Ms.
Ansaloni stated that graduate students could apply for this type of housing and get a list of
volunteering landlords. Ms. Ansaloni asked if Penn has special financial help for this. Mr.
Rennekamp asked about a buyerOsprogram. Mr. Cagello suggested this could revitalize the
city. Ms. Heyward stated that there is such a program but a graduate student cannot afford a
house in University City on his or her salary. Ms. Ansaloni asked if there exists an
emergency fund for graduate students. Mr. Rennekamp stated that this does not exist at
Penn. Ms. Ansaloni stated that she is attempting to set this up at Drexel. Ms. Heyward
stated that she discovered at the Ivy Summit if students at other universities get into an
accident, it is very difficult for them to obtain emergency funding.

Health Insurance

Mr. Rennekamp asked if these schools require health insurance. Ms. Ansaloni stated some
insurances only cover 80% of doctorsOfees Mr. Greenberg stated that graduate student
health insurance is usually minimal. Ms. Ansaloni stated that this is a sensitive issue. There
is a physician on the committee that discusses this topic and he decides how much the student



gapsa

is able to pay, even with a limited salary. It is difficult to judge and justify the physicianOs
decision. Ms. Ansaloni stated that all three universities utilize Aetna Chickering. Mr.
Greenberg stated that services are usudly proportional to the cost of the insurance. Ms.
Ansaloni stated that students have a problem getting money for the remainder of the
doctorsOfees and the emergency fund ideais appropriate for this. Ms. Heyward asked how
the emergency money would be obtained Ms. Ansaloni stated that the funding would come
from the adivity general fee from the Office of University Life. Ms. Heyward asked how
much of the Drexel activity fee goesto fund the school government. Ms. Ansaloni stated
11%, with 40% of the fee going towards unredricted funds. Mr. Rennekamp stated that the
numbers are similar for PennOgyeneral fee. Mr. Hagan asked if there are any other specific
areas on which the three schools could collaborate. Mr. Miller stated that USPOsgracuate
student government is only 1.5 years old and the health care system wasan issue. However,
USP has worked this issue out for now. USPOsadministration ageed to supplement health
care issuesinstead of operating under a reimbursement plan.

Advice for USP

Mr. Miller stated that USP is always looking for collaborations and sharing resources Mr.
Miller akedfor any advice concerning this. Mr. Haganstatedthat it isimportant to make a
government sustainade. Mr. Hagan stated that formal structures positions, elections, and
time frameswill affect the organization in the future. Ms. Heyward stated that USP is on the
correct track. Ms. Heyward stated that at 1vy Summit another school had created a new
government which was working on social events. Ms. Heyward noted that at the beginning,
social events are essential to a new organization. However, once the organization is
edahlished than more salient issues can be discussed. Ms. Ansaloni stated that GSA at Drexel
undement a major resructuring with new rulesand a new constitution so that the next board
will have guidelines Mr. Miller aked if GSA hasany problems filling board positions. Ms.
Ansaloni stated that only one person ran for each position. Mr. Cagello stated that GSA
initially held many social events and now many students are involved in the GSA. Once
students got to know each other, it waseaser for the students to get organized. For example,
the soccer leagues beganwith Mr. Cagello and one other person. Now there are five soccer
commissioners and the soccer tradtion at Drexel is quite large. Ms. Heyward stated that at
Penn it is difficult to distinguish what the needs of certain groups are, such asparents at Penn
or part time students. Mr. Miller stated that at USP, most of the graduate students are part
time, and assuch, it is difficult to coordinate studentsOschedules. This is the reason many
USP events are held at night. Mr. Miller stated that he would like to see more events for the
part time students. Ms. Heyward asked if there are any specific events in which part time
students would be interesed Mr. Miller suggested holding more job seeking and networking
events. Mr. Miller noted that social events are not asidealfor students with children.

Philadelphia Career Fair

Ms. Heyward stated that MIT hasa large career fair which generates $300,000 a year since
businesses purchase booths at this fair. Ms. Heyward noted that Campus Philly helps keep
students in Philadelphia pursuing careersin Philacelphia. Ms. Heyward suggested that Campus
Philly could organize alarge career fair similar to the oneat MIT. Mr. Miller stated that this
would be an appropriate event that could be held in the late spring. Mr. Miller suggested
including a poster sesion in this event. Mr. Castello stated that the Graduate Alumni
Committee at Drexel differentiates between graduate student alumni and undergraduate
student alumni. Mr. Cagello stated that Drexel is looking to hold an event similar to this
career fair. Mr. Miller stated that this event would promote entrepreneurship and USP is
focused on entrepreneurship. Mr. Miller suggested holding a competition between student



gapsa

teams and the prize could be start-up money for their idea Ms. Heyward stated that Penn
holds asimilar event, noting that Philly Car Share wasstartedby this event.

Final Game Plan
Mr. Hagan askedfor steps to go from here.

Ms. Ansaloni recapped, stating that there would be a social event at the end of January for
the three schools. USP would organize this event. Drexel will invegigate a community
service event with the Franklin Institute and organize a soccer tournament held in mid or end
of April. Penn would organize a tree planting or other community service event. Mr.
Castello stated that he hascontacts for these events.

Mr. Cagello suggested Penn could organize an event locally similar to a Drexel event where a
Weg Philadelphia playground was cleaned up. Mr. Rennekamp stated that he will ask Ms.
Arlt about future community service events. Ms. Ansaloni statedthat the community service
event could be held in March. Ms. Ansaloni stated that the food drive is another option asis
the Franklin Institute event. However, these may be difficult to fit in. Ms. Ansaloni stated
that the Franklin Institute event could beheld in early April and the soccer tournament could
be held at the end of April. Mr. Rennekamp stated that if he had the information for the
Franklin Institute, Penn could organize this event. Mr. Cagello stated that the Academy of
Advancement of Sdences is located off of Market Street. This organization coordinates
other events directly with the Philacelphia school system. Ms. Ansaloni stated that Mr.
Cadello could serd out an email with these contacts. Mr. Rennekamp stated that GAPSA has
someone specifically in charge of these types of events. Ms. Ansaloni stated that GAPSA
could look into other options aswdl. Mr. Cagello is in charge of informing the Drexel
Social Committee the options. Mr. Rennekamp suggesed March asatime to hold this event.
Mr. Miller stated that USP could help with this aswell. Ms. Ansaloni statedthat this meeting
was important to keep each school in the loop. Once a general ideaof the eventsOstructures
is set, then the three schools can meet again to decide on details. Mr. Cagello stated that
since Drexel is in charge of the soccer tournament, he will speak with the soccer
commissioners. Ms. Heyward stated that Penn has someone organizing a winter indoor
soccer league and this contact information could be given to Drexel and USP aswell. Mr.
Miller suggested creating an online document listing event details and dates that everyone
could access. Mr. Nguyen suggested creaing awiki where everyone could have administrator
privileges to edt the information. Ms. Heyward suggesedusing Google Docs.

QUniversity City Graduate CoalitionO

Ms. Ansaloni asked if the three school collaboration should be given a name. Ms. Heyward
suggested the University City Consortium. Mr. Rennekamp stated that this name may
already be taken. Mr. Miller suggestedthe University City Graduate Coalition (UCGC).

Adjournment

The meeting wasadournedat 8:02 pm.



